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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

On the southeast corner of Eutaw and Fayette Streets (21 North Eutaw
Street) stands the Baltimore Equitable Society. The two-story building
with brownstone front and brick sides was constructed in 1857 in the
Italian Renaissance style, and was originally the headquarters of the
Eutaw Savings Bank. The central entrance on the three-bay Eutaw Street
side is most handsome: five marble steps lead to a pair of heavy wooden
doors that are paneled and studded, and topped with a stained-glass fan-
light. These doors are flanked by simple square pilasters that end in
elaborate capitals in a scrolled acanthus leaf design. Above the fan-
light is an intricately carved panel and over all a plain classical pedi- -
ment. This decorative ' work is done in the same Connecticut brownstone
with which the Eutaw Street facade is covered. The first-story windows
have six-over-six sash with the upper sash arched and glazed; those on
the main facade feature a decorative treatment similar to that of the
entrance. These decorative elements are seen again in the heavy brown-
stone lintels and brackets over the five first-level windows on the
Fayette Street side. The second-story windows are six-over-six with a
flattened arch. Those on the main facade are rimmed with a simple brown-
stone molding, which is repeated in an abbreviated form on those on the
Fayette Street side. The windows on the south side (alley) are identical
to their north and west counterparts, but are without embellishment:" All
windows have brownstone sills.

_oove the second-story windows is a coﬁplete entablature, with a simple
architrave and frieze, and a wooden cornice featuring dentils below and
carved modillions above. The gable end facing Eutaw Street is pedlmented
and the roof is covered with tin.

Inside the front doors is a small vestibule, whose interior partitions are .
pierced by windows and doors with Tudor arches. The main banking area
measures 32 feet by 41 feet, and takes up the entire width of the building
and two-thirds of its length. It is divided by a curving counter and
‘grille of solid mahogany with walnut trim. The walls are plastered and
the floor is of tile outside the counter and of wood planks in the em-
ployees' area. Half of the remainder of the first floor is taken up by

the President's office, -entered via a solid door from the customer area,
or through double doors with glass inserts from behind the counter. Here .
is found a fireplace faced with black marble and a collection of eighteenth
century fire marks. There is, in addition, a vault on this level which .
contains a Corless revolving safe, and a circular staircase to the second
floor, with walnut handrail and oak balusters. The second story is one
large room that was at one time divided by a partition, and which now
houses an exhibit of antique fire equipment. The floors are of wood
planks, the walls are of plaster and the ceiling, like that of the lower-
level, is of coffered metal.
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~—INVENTION

Joseph F.K. Kemp, Architect

HITECT :
BUILDER/ARC Gardner & Matthews, Builders

SPECIFIC DATES 1857

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

. The building occupied by the Baltimore Equitable Society is representative
of an architectural genre that has all but disappeared from the streets of
Baltimore. The Fire of 1904, urban renewal and modernization have taken
most of the city's mid-nineteenth century commercial structures, and have
left others altered beyond recognition. This handsome Italian Renaissance
building on the corner of Eutaw and Fayette Streets not only survives, but
has been maintained with great care, and is still in use. Today it houses
the oldest corporation in the city, and a fine collection of vintage fire

. equipment and paraphernalia.

The lot on which the building stands was originally part of a larger tract

bounded by West. Fayette Street on the north, North Eutaw Street on the west,

and Garrett Street on the south. On September 19, 1795, this tract, com-
ed of five parcels, was leased for a period of 99 years by Abraham

.+ :ler, who sold part of the property to Aquilla Brown, Jr., in 1799, and

bequeathed the remainder to his daughter Hetty, wife of Samuel Keyser,

. a china merchant. The tract was inherited by their son, Michael F. Keyser,

in 1840; sixteen years later Keyser died, and the administrator of his

estate, John H.B. Latrobe, conveyed two of the remaining four lots to the

Eutaw Savings Bank.

Incorporated in 1847, the Eutaw Savings Bank has since that time had its
offices in the Eutaw House. On July 7, 1856, the Board of Directors
authorized the purchase of the lot 77 feet on Eutaw Street, by 66 feet on
. Fayette Street, southeast corner, subject to one cent ground rent, for the
sum of $12,000. After nearly two months of deliberation, the Board decided
on May 8, 1857, to erect a banking house for the institution on part of the
recently purchased property. A design submitted by architect Joseph F.K.
Kemp was accepted for a fee of $400, and builders Gardner and Matthews were
chosen at their bid of $14,825. Construction was begun in June, 1857, and
completed on December 31, 1857; the cost of the building was $16,103.48,
and this amount plus the $6,000 estimated value of the land used, made a
total cost of $22,103.48. The Building Committee of the Board of Directors
expressed the oplnlon in February, 1858, "that for neatness, convenience
and durablllty, it is at its cost unegualed by any other banking house in
. ouxr city."

(See Continuation Sheet No. 1)
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SIGNIFICANCE (continued)

The Eutaw Savings Bank grew rapidly, and within a few decades the
building had become inadeguate for the firm's needs. A larger building
was built across Eutaw Street, and in 1889 the original brick and brown-
stone structure was conveyed to the Baltimore Equitable Society. The
oldest corporation in the city, and the fourth oldest insurance company
in the United States, the Baltimore Equitable Society had been insuring
houses from loss by fire since 1794. The Society retains all of its
official records and information on properties insured since 1794, which
provide a good historical reference and source of information.

Baltimore Equitable continues to occupy this building, carrying on its
business and maintaining .2a museum of antique fire fighting equipment and
related articles and an extensive collection of eighteenth century fire
marks. Included in the collection are a small hand pump engine of the
late 1780's, a large hose reel from 1805, two smaller hose reels of
"ater vintage, a large collection of fire helmets, parade hats, buckets,
_rumpets, uniforms and other paraphernalia of this era. The collection
of 286 fire marks is one of the largest exhibits of such plagques on dis-

play. Also included in the museum are many old books, maps, and pamphlets

about fire fighting and much of the original furniture of the bank, in-
cluding high benches, chairs, and a desk. The installation of the modern
conveniences of heat, air conditioning and electricity were done with
care and do not alter the nineteenth century appearance of the building.
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Maryland 21202

TITLE OF SURVE

City of Baltimore Neighborhced Survey

DATE OF SURVEY: 1976 ] Federal [ State [ County ﬁ Local
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

COMMISSION FOR HISTORICAL &

Room 900

ciTy orR TowN: D6 South Calvert St.

Baltimore, Md. 21202
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dﬁxclﬂ.nl [ Good [] Fair [] Deteriorated [J Ruins [] -Unexposed

{Check One) {Check One)
1 Altered Uncltered ] Moved ﬁ‘igiul Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT # 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This two story high, three bay wide, five bay deep commercial
building is built of brick, with a brownstopne front and gabled
roof, with the line of the peak running perpendiculer to the
street front. The details are taken from French and Italian
Renaissance styles,

The symmetrically arrenged front facade is opengd by an entrance
marked by double wooden doors with round-arched transom above a
brownstone muntin. A pedimental hood rests on rolled modillions.
A rope molding surrounds the recessed entranceway, and vine and
leaf reliefs ars carved above the dcor. Stone steps lead to the
door from the sidewalk.

The round-arched windows {lanking the entrance are surrounded by
brownstone.sills, frames, and hoods which are smaller scale ver-
sions of that above the door. Windcws are double hung with 11/6
lights with a fanned top.

A lone wooden sign above the door is painted with gold lettering
reading "Baltimore Equitable Society."

The secord floor window openings are segmental arched with brown-
stone surrounds and have double hung windows with 6/6 lights. A
narrow frieze is indicated by a thin band of molding and a weoden
cornice is adorned with rolled modillions. The gable end is
accentuated as a pedimental form with deeply projecting moldings.

The north side of the building is of brick laid in running bond.
First floor windows are like those on the front except that they
are frameless and have flat hoods. Second floor windows are like
those on the front except that they are frameless. The cornice
and the frieze are carried for the depth of the building.

The Equitable Society Building is currently undergoing minor renova-
tions and repairs.
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PERIOD (Check One or More aa Appropriate
[ Pre-Columbian [J 16th Century G 8th Century [C] 20th Century
(] 15th Century {1 17th Century 19th Century

SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known) ,m

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Aber iginal [0 Education [ Political (] Urban Planning
(O] Prehistoric [[] Engineering [] Religion/Phi- [0 Other (specity)
[ Historic O Industry losophy

[ Agriculture [l Invention [] Science

M Architecture [ Landscape [] Sculpture

i | Architecture [ Secial/Human-

Commerce [ Literature itarian .

(0 Communications [ Military [ Theater

[] Conservation . O Music [} Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This brick Renaissance building with brownstone front was built as the
headquarters of the Butaw Savings Bank, The Baltimore Equitable Society,
the third oldest fire Insurance Company in- the country, asquired the

building in 1889.
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